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This plan sets forth the goals and objectives
of historic preservation efforts in Saginau
County. Tuwo examples are provided detailing
how different historic studies can be made.
The first study deals with the Castle Station
Federal Building in downtown Saginaw. This
property will be declared surplus in 1976.
The plan outlines how the structure could be
adapted to new, productive uses. The second
study looks at a proposed historic district
on the west side of Saginaw. The architec-
tural, historical and environmental signifi-
cance as well as the physical condition of
each structure was examined. The area uas
found to have historic value and it is recom-
mended that a historic district be created.
Methods are also outlined for maintaining or
restoring the character of the homes and
neighborhood.
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The major value therefore, of this study
will be to illustrate ways to preserve
historic assets so as to strengthen our
local heritage, culture and building
stock. 01ld structures should be util-
ized in a productive way, but when they
are abandoned new uses should be found,
being careful to find uses that are com-
patible with the structure. Thus the
re-use of old buildings must be encour-
aged so that old structures will remain
strong and functional.

One major thrust of our recommendations
is the creation of a number of historic
districts. There are a number of areas
in Saginaw County that should be examined
for their preservation potential. An
example of one such study is in a later
section of this report. More districts,
however, should be studied and created

as the Saginaw Area is rich in history.
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In 1675 Father Henri Nouvel, a Jesuit
priest from St. Ignace became the first
white visitor to Saginaw. He made the
journey to visit the Chippewa Indians
at their winter hunting grounds. This
trip is commemorated by a rock on 0jib-
way Island.

Between 1675 and 1819 the white people
who visited the Saginaw area were fur
trappers and traders with the Indians.
Others were discouraged by unfriendly
Indians, the dense forests and large
swampy areas.

In 1819 conditions began to change.

The United States Government sent Lewis
Cass, Governor of the Territory of Mich-
igan to negotiate a treaty with the
Indians. It ceded their lands to the
United States Government. Thus ouwner-
ship of more than six million acres of
land and water in northeastern Michigan
changed hands.

Once this treaty was signed, the govern-
ment began selling the land to settlers,
and families began to arrive in Saginaw.
Due to Indian harassment, however, in

1822 a fort had to be established on the
banks of the Saginaw River to protect the
residents of the area. The fort was lo-
cated at what is now Court and Hamilton
Streets where the Fordney Hotel now stands.

It was not only the Indians, however, that
gave the soldiers trouble at the fort.

In the swampy areas along the river, in-
numerable mosquitoes were bred. Soon

most of the soldiers were infected by
malaria-carrying mosquitoes. The sol-
diers protested so vigorously about

their plight that the government ordered
the military to abandon the fort. This
withdrawal was completed by 1824.

After the fort was abandoned it passed
into private ownership and the buildings
continued to be used. It was primarily
used by settlers arriving in Saginaw as
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shelter until they could find other
quarters. The fort also continued to
be used for a variety of purposes until
1870 when it finally was destroyed

by fire.

During the years preceding and for a
decade after the signing of the Treaty
of Saginaw in 1819, trading with the
Indians was the major occupation of
white men in Saginaw. As government
surveys were extended over the area
settlers moved in and farming was es-
tablished. Although farming played a
significant role in the growth of
Saginaw, it was the lumbering that made
the town grow.

In the mid 1830's, lumbering began

in Saginaw, at first just to supply the
needs of the local residents. Lumbering
soon flourished and by 1870 Saginaw be-
came one of the lumbering capitals of
the nation.

While billions of feet of lumber were
processed in Saginaw, only a very small
percentage of the logs originated around
Saginaw itself. The great stands of
white pine were located adjacent to the
tributaries of the Saginaw River. The
immediate area of Saginaw was low marsh-
land and unsuitable for growth of pine
trees.

During the lumber era, Saginaw was also
among the nation's leading salt producers.
Brine was brought up from deep wells and
distilled using the left-over by-products
of the lumber mills. With the demise of
the lumber industry in the late 1800's,
salt production became too costly an
undertaking because of the lack of waste
wood and soon it, too, began to dwindle.

Saginaw's future looked uncertain. Its
economic structure was crumbling. For-
tunately, however, several Saginaw citi-
zens, recognizing the need for new in-
dustry, began to invest their capital in
various operations. Furniture, match,
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and barrel factories were some of the
new industries that came to Saginaw.
Machine shops were established and
later as the automobile industry began
to expand, Saginaw became a part of it.

Today, Saginaw is a modern, thriving
industrial city. It is the home of
several General Motors foundries and
manufacturing plants as well as numer-
ous supporting industries and is a
prospering community of over 230,000
people.

The goal of this historic preservation
program goes beyond just preserving a
few old structures that may have some
historical importance. It seeks to
bring these buildings back into the
mainstream of the community and not
simply as isolated objects of past
history. The Saginaw County Metropoli-
tan Planning Commission and the Saginauw
County Historic District Commission set
forth the following goals for its pre-
servation program.

* Preserve sites, neighborhoods and
groups of buildings that are of
unique, distinct and characteristic
architecture or that are identified
with the history of the City of
Saginaw, Saginaw Valley Region,
Michigan or the United States.

* Provide a sense of historic and
civic pride; and to make citizens
of Saginaw County aware of its his-
toric assets and of how past genera-
tions lived.
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* Encourage the productive re-use through
compatible means and the continued use
of historic structures.

* Create historic districts to preserve
sound housing, decent neighborhoods
and maintain existing "urban fabrics"
of the community.

* Preserve smaller sites and single
buildings that are symbols of the
many social and ethnic groups who
had an influence on the growth of
Saginauw.

* Incorporate historic buildings, sites
and districts in the Saginaw County
Development Plan to insure that they
are used as part of the county's long
range development.

* Develop commitments by public agencies
to cooperate with preservation groups,
citizens' groups and neighborhood im-
provement associations.

* Encourage further preservation efforts
including a more detailed inventory of
existing structures so that all archi-
tectural and historically significant
buildings in Saginaw are recorded.

* Develop and establish procedures for
preserving buildings and neighborhoods,
such as a "guide book for restoration”
that would outline the proper techni-
ques to be used to preserve buildings
so as not to harm the integrity or in-
tent of the original structure.

* The implementation of historic preser-
vation programs through the creation
of historic districts, public and pri-
vate funding to rehabilitate deterior-
ating structures and increased public
exposure through the different forms
of local communications media.

A commitment to these goals should pro-
vide for a balanced and intelligent
approach of linking the community's pre-
sent and past with its future.
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s 7/ This historic preservation plan focuses
mew on two different ways to preserve impor-
tant sites in Saginaw County. As time
pmm&'a“ and money did not permit the evaluation
of all important historical features in
Saginaw, only the Castle Station Federal
gW Building and the proposed West Side Sagi-
naw Historic District were closely
examined. It is hoped that these will
serve as examples to illustrate specific
preservation plans and to form the guide-
lines for future preservation activities.

CASTLE STATION FEDERAL BUILDING

The Castle Station Federal Building is

an important landmark to downtown Saginauw
as well as to the entire County. This
building of the French Renaissance Chateau
style will be declared surplus property

in 1976. The section of the report
dealing with the Castle Station will
describe possible new productive uses for
it. The new use will primarily be for a
historic museum, but other uses will also be
examined such as county office space and
rental space for private tenants. Through
this plan it is hoped that the Castle Sta-
tion will remain a valuable landmark in
Saginaw with productive new uses.

WEST SIDE HISTORIC AREA

The West Side Historic Area was examined
with the hope that a historic district
would be created. To this end a detailed
study was undertaken of 225 homes in this
west side neighborhood. Examined in this
study are the architectural, historical
and environmental significance as well

as the physical condition of all struc-
tures over fifty years old within the
proposed district boundaries. In addi-
tion to being a survey for a proposed
historic district, this analysis should
LN, serve as a basis for further historic

X district studies. It was found that this
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area does serve as an excellent setting
of fine and usable homes that provide a
coherent neighborhood.

Four areas that should be studied to
determine their historic value are
briefly described belouw.

FRANKENMUTH

Frankenmuth was settled by missionaries
from Bravaria, Germany in 1845 at a site
west of the present city near St. Lorenz
Lutheran Church. When lumbering became
important, a sauwumill was built on the

Cass River one mile east of the original
settlement. All that now remains on the
site of the first settlement is a ceme-
tery and a replica of the first church
built in 1845.  Later a gristmidlilss

brewery and hotel were built on the new
site, and here the present City of Franken-
muth became established. While the sauw-
mill and gristmill are now gone, many in-
teresting and historic buildings remain
especially along Main Street. Franken-
muth continues to have a heritage of
community spirit in addition to historic
buildings. A historic district could be
appropriately established in this community.
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CHESANING

The first settlers arrived in the
Chesaning area in 1826, but a Village
of Chesaning was not incorporated until
1869. The word Chesaning means in Indian
"lone or big rock". A large granite
rock is located on the east side of the
village. It is believed that a glacier
carried the rock from the Lake Superior
area. This rock is historically impor-
tant, as it is mentioned in the Cass
Treaty of 1819. The Chippewa Indians
were to retain "one tract of ten thou-
sand acres on the Shiawassee River, in
a place called 'Big Rock'." Also in
this area is the Parshallburg Mill lo-
cated three miles up the Shiawassee
River. This mill started grinding
grain in 1856 and continued in opera-
tion until the 1960's. This area thus
has many sites of historic interest and
value that can form a historic district.

CITY OF SAGINAUW

Other areas in the City of Saginaw should
be studied in addition to the proposed
West Side Historic District. One such
area is located on Saginaw's East Side

and is bounded approximately by Jefferson,
Holland, Sheridan, McCoskry, Mott and
Genesee. This area was once one of East
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Saginaw's most beautiful residential
areas., It is typified by many beautiful
homes, especially along the major thor-
oughfares. Recently this area has started
to show signs of decay. It can, however,
be preserved if immediate action is

taken to save it.

The area surrounding the proposed West
Side Historic District should also be
examined to determine if the boundaries
should be expanded. Included in this
area are the structures along Michigan
Avenue, from the Ring Home (Saginaw Art
Museum) to the Stark Home at 704 South
Michigan, as these and other homes in
the Michigan Avenue area are identified
in the Saginaw County Historic Assets
report. The commercial area commonly
known as the West Side Business District
has many fine structures and should be
included in any expansion of the historic
district.
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In addition to the above mentioned pos-
sible districts all other important
historic assets should be inventoried.
Qualified architects and historians should
be used to catalogue these structures to
insure that they will not be destroyed by
ignorance.

Individual structures can also be found
scattered throughout the community and
the county. Many of them have architec-
tural or historic value, but they are
isolated and not part of a broader his-
toric grouping. Nonetheless, these
isolated structures should be functionally
preserved and utilized without being
demolished. Their value can be enhanced
by appropriate restoration, landscaping
and urban design, while the structure's
interior can be converted into a more
contemporary facility. Some of the sites
of this nature would include the White
House, State and M-47, the Penn Central
Railroad Station on West Genesee, the
Linton Home at 424 Webber and various
structures in downtown Saginauw.

|

When these studies and inventories are
finished the task of preserving quality
examples of our past will not be com-
pleted. Many fine residential areas of
Saginaw are presently not old enough to
qualify as historic areas. But in the
future, areas such as "Golfside" and
"Brockway Place" will be architecturally
and historically significant. At pre-
sent little can be done as far as his-
toric preservation is concerned with

these areas, but in the future they will
be prime candidates for historic districts.
They should be studied and when they
qualify for historic districts they should
be so designated.
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The De Toqueville Chateau in France

¥

The Castle Station about 1905




The Castle Station Federal Building is
located on Federal Avenue between South
Jefferson and Warren Avenues in downtown
Saginaw, Michigan. This French Renais-
sance Chateau style structure is regarded
by local residents as one of the most
beautiful and unique in Saginaw. New
productive uses are outlined for this
structure so it will remain valuable to
the community.

The Castle Station is situated on 1.35
acres of land. The property dimensions
are 250 by 246 feet, plus an additional
eleven feet of city sidewalk on three
sides of the property. Immediately

ad jacent is the Hoyt Library located on
the south half of the block separated
from the Castle Station by a parking lot
and a small iron fence.
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;z[.!a The fifty-first Congress (1889) appro-

priated $200,000 for the construction
of a post office for East Saginaw.
' President Harrison, however, thought
{ this was too expensive and vetoed it.
Later Congress reappropriated $100,000;
\ the President signed this into lau.
' Action on construction was delayed until
1892 when the plans were drawn. The
original plans provided for a large, one
story structure; they were, however,
unacceptable to the local citizens.
Several years passed without any work
being done until William Linton was
elected to Congress from Saginaw. He
pushed for the completion of the project.
More acceptable plans were drawn, con-
tracts were let, and construction finally
began on May 11, 1897. The architect,
William M. Aiken, patterned his design
after the French chateau of nineteen
century explorer-traveller-uriter Alexis
De Toqueville, who visited Saginaw in
July 1831. The post office was officially
opened July 3, 1898. At that time the neuw
building was considered to be the best
planned post office for a city of Saginauw's
size in the country.

R AR RERRRRRR

As Saginaw grew and business increased

it was necessary to make additions to the
structure. The last of these was com-
pleted in 1937. These alterations were
done by the General Services Administra-
tion under the direction of architect
Carl Macomber of Saginaw. The changes
were necessary to increase the efficiency
of the post office. The architect was
careful not to alter the intent or char-
acter of the original design. The major
changes included an addition to the rear
of the building increasing the size of
the mail room and the removal of the
centrally located entrance on Federal Ave-
nue. It was replaced with an entrance at
each end of the building. The remodelled
building was dedicated in September 1937
by Postmaster General James Farley. He
declared it to be one of the most beau-
tiful and stately post office buildings
in the country.

5
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The Castle Station Federal Building is
now used for the receipt of mail and
window postal service, but not for mail
distribution. Many federal agencies,
including the Federal Bureau of Investi-
gation, Department of Agriculture and
Army Corp of Engineers have offices in
the building. The fate of this structure,
however, is uncertain, as a neuw post
office was built in 1964 and the General
Services Administration is interested in
disposing of the building when the neuw
federal building is completed in 1976.

The Castle Station Federal Building is
significant as it is one of the only
French Chateau Style Federal Buildings

in the nation. Imposing in style, it
blends with its surroundings and, together
with the Hoyt Library, forms a block
symbolizing nineteenth century grandeaur.
The building is a masterpiece of profes-
sional craftsmanship. For these reasons
the building was placed on the National
Register of Historic Places in January

1972.
9



Stwuctunal D

The character and value of a structure
is often judged by its physical details
and condition. The Castle Station Fed-
eral Building has many fine architec-
tural details. Furthermore, its struc-
tural condition is excellent. These
factors make the Castle Station a land-
mark that should be preserved and util-
ized in a productive manner.

The primary building material of the

Castle Station is stone, both smooth

cut and rough faced stone are used.

The smooth-cut stone is used in de-

tailed locations such as corner orna-

ments, reinforcement systems, entrances

and window details, horizontal belt

course, lintels and cornice friezes.

The rough faced stone is used through-

out the intermediate masonry areas.

Stone, brick and concrete are used

in the solid masonry walls, foundation
construction and piers. Steel beams :
are used in floor construction. Con- l
siderable timber work and steel mem-

bers are used in roof framing. The

roof is composed of slate shingles
with stone ornaments and copper
flashing. The interior of the struc-
ture is of marble and stone quarried
in Colorado.

zo




The elevation of the first floor is

six and one half feet above the city
sidewalk. The ceiling height in the
public lobby is fifteen feet and tuwenty-
five feet in the mail room. The second
floor is eighteen feet above the first
floor and its ceiling is twelve feet.
The basement floor is eleven feet below
the first floor and its ceiling is eight
feet in height at the beams. The peak
of the French style slate roof with it
ornamental stonework and cooper flashing
is seventy-five feet above the city side-
walk or sixty-eight feet above the first
floor.




Corriice Delar/s
Sor Jowers.

TOWER DETAILS.

At present there is no public elevator
service in the building. There is,
however, a service elevator in the
southeast corner of the building opera-
ting between the basement and first
floors only. There is access to all
floors by stair systems located through-
out the structure.

The structure is centrally heated by a
steam perimeter and condensate return
system. The furnace system is located

in the basement and was installed in
1972. The Castle Station is not equipped
with a central air-cooling system.

The Castle Station Federal Building is
in excellent physical condition. The
General Services Administration is
responsible for its maintenance and they
regard it as one of the best maintained
structures in the mid-uwest.
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%e pﬂ! The Castle Station Federal Building has

played an important role in the history
of Saginaw, and the new uses should
reflect this role. New uses should be
carefully examined to be sure they are
compatible with the building and other
proposed uses. The new uses outlined
below will hopefully retain this char-
acter and even add to its place in the
community.

The total usable space in the Castle
Station Federal Building is approxi-
mately 46,000 square feet. The base-
ment and first floor are nearly equal
in size, 18,000 and 19,000 square feet
respectively. The second floor and
mezzanine are smaller comprising only
about 9,000 square feet.

SPACE SUMMARY OF PROPOSED
USE PLAN FOR CASTLE STATION FEDERAL BUILDING
APPROXIMATE SQUARE FOOTAGE

MUSEUM PUBLIC COUNTY RENTAL TOTAL

BASEMENT 7,000 1,560 9,650 0 18,200
FIRST FLOOR 11,750 3,400 3,200 1,100 19,450
SECOND FLOOR 1,650 950 0 6,000 8,600

TOTAL 20,400 5,900 . 12,850 7,100 46,250

v



The largest proposed use will be a histor-
ical museum. The old mail room will be
used for displays and exhibits while
storage space will be provided in the
basement and office space on the second
floor. The museum will use up forty-

four percent of the space in the building.

Other uses will be much smaller. As an
example, Saginaw County could account
for twenty-eight percent of the use,
fifteen percent could be leased to pri-
vate tenants and thirteen percent could
be open for public use. A detailed
breakdown of square feet by each use is
shown on the following table while the
plan is shown on the following pages.

These new uses will basically not affect
the structure or appearance of the Castle
Station. The major changes will be the
removal of some non loadbearing walls
make spaces that suit the needs of the
new tenants. A small number of these
changes will be required on each floor.
The second floor changes will depend on
the type of tenant or tenants that lease
space. It is possible that the entire
space would be altered. On the first
floor, the lobby area will remain as

it is, except for the removal of post
office equipment and new entrances to

the mail area and to the proposed offices
in the front of the building. The base-
ment will remain substantially the same
except for the divisions between the dif-
ferent uses. The exterior of the struc-
ture will not be altered, except for a
possible enclosure of the loading plat-
form to provide year around use and addi-
tion of a new service entrance as the old
loading area will be removed and landscaped.
Both of these changes will be in the rear
of the structure and should not adversely
affect the character of the building.

4




The major use of the Castle Station, a
historic museum, suits the character of
the building. Both the historical and
architectural significance should be
enhanced by establishing a museum in the
structure. The exhibit area of the museum
and lobby are the two primary interior
areas that give the structure its char-
acter. These areas will be preserved in
their current state except for minor changes
to accomodate the new uses. The county
and private tenants will be located in
areas that will not affect the historic

or architectural character of the struc-
ture. Before any alterations would be
made, an architect would be employed to
insure that the architectural character

of the Castle Station would remain in

its present condition.

g5



Warnen

CASUE STATION

Pederal
S97E PLAN

Jedfenson




0 5 10 15 2025

-
=
.

5




i
= e =

2 c
%gaa

Tinot Ploor Plan
[ 0 B S S — —
0 5 10 I5 20 .28




“|-|||:::: o

Second Plsor Plan

=1 1T
0 5 015203




e g










i

By -

Background

————— - =

[
EEAROR = " e

During the late nineteenth century Sag-
inaw developed into one of the lumber-
ing capitals of the world. This uwas
the time when many of the fine homes
were built. Most of them were of wood
construction and are excellent examples
of that period's architecture. Today,
we still have some of these fine homes,
but we must act now if we are to pre-
serve them for future generations to
learn from and enjoy.

With the completion of the report
Saginaw County Historic Assets in July
1973, interest in historic preserva-
tion has become more intense. Civic
and neighborhood groups have expressed
concern over the loss of beautiful
examples of the architecture of the
late 1800's. They have wished to knouw
how they could help to preserve these
historic homes. O0One west side Saginaw
group, later to become known as the
Heritage Square Resident Association,
wondered how their neighborhood could
become a historic district. The His-
toric District Commission explored

the possibility and felt that this
area was representative of the archi-
tecture and history of early Saginau.
Consequently a detailed study has
taken place of this area with the goal
of creating a historic district.
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According to the National Register of
Historic Places, a historic district

is defined as a "geographical area with
a concentration of sites, buildings,
structures or objects unified by a past
event, a plan, or physical develop-
ment." Recently, houwever, the Council
on Environmental Quality recommended
that older neighborhoods with some
special charm, also be added to the
National Register. By adding these
neighborhoods the definition of his-
toric districts is broadened to include
more than just the architecturally or
historically significant homes to also
include neighborhoods of ordinary peo-
ple. Furthermore, preservation activi-
ties in the past have too often been
concerned only with individual struc-
tures and too seldom the general street-
scape. Historic districts should be
concerned with these overall effects

of the buildings while attempting to
preserve viable, old neighborhoods. 1In
this way older urban neighborhoods can
be made important resources for the pre-
sent as well as for the future.*

¥Lawrence Houstown, "Saving Urban Charm,"
Planning (December 1974), p. 17.
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The purpose of this study is to deter-
mine the present architectural and his-
toric value of this West Side Saginauw
neighborhood, to recommend how it

should be preserved and to recommend

the legal framework for implementation.
To this end, a detailed study of two
hundred twenty-five structures in this
area has been made. A fifty year cut-
off date was used to determine the
structures that should receive consider-
ation. Survey cards (see Appendix) were
made to record relevant data and photo-
graphs were taken of each structure in
the area.

Two architectural historians from John-
son, Johnson and Roy, an Ann Arbor firm,
were employed to study architectural

and environmental considerations. They
gave valuable suggestions on historic
preservation and the means of accom-
plishing our goals. The Saginaw County
Metropolitan Planning Commission is
grateful for their help on this project.
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From a historic point of view the West
Side Historic Area is not rich in na-
tional or state history. Few of its
original residents were active in affairs
outside the Saginaw Valley. But this
area, however, is rich in local history.
Therefore, it is not the individual
history of a famous person, it is the
total history that this area represents
to the entire history of Saginaw. This
small neighborhood in Saginaw represents
a broad spectrum ranging from the

early settlers of the area to people

who arrived later and were influential
in the formation of Saginaw. Residents
in their large and beautiful homes in-
cluded lumberman, bankers and merchants.
But just as important there were com-
mon people, cigarmakers, grocers, la-
borers and shoemakers, living beside

the rich. This makes the West Side
Historic Area important because in a
small area a wide variety of people
could be found. This was not a neigh-
borhood of only the rich with their
grand homes; even though there are

homes that should be included in the
National Register of Historic Places.

It is true then, that the West Side
Historic Area cannot be compared to
one that had many famous residents.
But as a part of the history of Sag-
inaw County this area is important as
it represents the wide variety of
people that helped to develop Saginauw
into what it is today. The historic
significance, therefore, is judged by
giving more emphasis on local history
than would normally be the case.

To determine the historical signifi-
cance, the background of each struc-
ture was examined to see how it re-
lated to the people, the events or

way of life that shaped the development
of Saginaw. Once the history of a
structure was determined the degree of
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importance was evaluated. The histor-
ical significance is graded by national,
state, regional or local significance
and importance.

The evaluation criteria for historical
significance is based on the following:

MATIONAL - The structure is associated
with history of national importance.

STATE - The structure is associated
with history of state importance.

REGIONAL - The structure is associated
with history of regional importance
(regional being defined as Saginauw
Valley area).

LOCAL = The structure is associated
with history of local importance.

N



=
=
=
F

There are many styles of architecture
in the West Side Historic Area, but
Italianate and Queen Anne are the ones
that give the area its character.

There are, also, many other styles,
many that cannot be easily classified.
Among the styles of architecture that
are exhibited are Classic Revival,
Colonial Revival, Greek Revival, Bunga-
loid and Victorian. The modern homes
(built after 1925) were not classified.
Churches and stores were only briefly
evaluated as there were too few examples
to make a good comparison.

The Italianate style of architecture is
characterized by rectangular blocks.
They are usually asymmetrically grouped,
but the elevations of individual blocks
are symmetrical. The roof is usually
hipped, flat-pitched and supported by
ornamental brackets. Windows are often
round-headed and grouped in twos or
threes. Later a tower became part of
the design, this was known as the Ital-
ian Villa style. A fine example of the
Villa-style is the structure located at
802 Court. Another derivation from the
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Italianate style is the Cube. This
style is typified by its symmetrical,
almost square appearance. A good exam-
ple of this style is the home located
at 213 South Granger.

The features of the Queen Anne style
are its irreqular outlines and massing,
steep-pitched roofs and a variety of
colors and textures. Different wall
surfaces are used in the same building
such as a combination of brick, horizon-
tal boards and shingles. The upper
stories sometimes project beyond the
lover. Windows are varied with bay
windows pften employed. Gables contri-
bute much to the overall effect and are
used in many different ways. Chimneys
are important. There are many fine
examples of the Queen Anne style, but
four that beautifully show its charac-
teristics are the homes located at

909 Court, 1021 Court, 921 Cass and 313
South Granger.
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The remaining styles, although not as
important as the two above, are worthy

of mention as they add to the character
of the area. The Greek Revival is
typified by its rectangular forms with
low pitched roofs. All windows and doors
have support beams across their top. - An
interesting example of the Greek Revival
style is the home at 817 Van Buren. The
Victorian style is a combination of many
different styles and therefore it is
difficult to describe. The revival
styles, both Classic and Colonial at-
tempted to bring back styles of earlier
periods, such as Greek and Georgian.
Another style, the Bungaloid, is much
newer dating from the early 1900's. It
is typified by its small size and single-
story, although some have gables forming
a second story.¥

* Marcus Whitter, American Architecture
Since 1870 (Cambridge, Massachusetts:
The MIT Press, 1969).

40




The architecture of Saginaw is judged

by evaluating it against local archi-
tecture, not a national or state stan-
dard. This was done because Saginau's
architecture is important to the City and
not the entire nation. Similarly the
evaluation procedure compares buildings
of a similar style against each other.
Italianate structures are judged against
other Saginaw Italianate structures,
while Queen Anne's are likewise judged
only among similar structures. Many
precautions were taken to be sure that
all evaluations were judged objectively
with minimal prejudices for any parti-
cular style of building.

Also evaluated with the style and quality
of architecture is the alteration of the
original design. When a structure is
remodeled or added to, the exterior

appearance is changed. Sometimes these
changes will be great and completely
change the building's character, and
therefore effect the architectural
significance of the structure. Many
times, however, the changes are minor
and do not change the character. This
criteria evaluates the appropriateness
of the changes, if indeed there have
been any changes.
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The two components evaluated as making
up the architectural significance are
as follous:

Architectural Design

EXCEPTIONAL - An outstanding example of
a style of architecture. It is im-
portant on a national context.

EXCELLENT - The structure must be of
state or important local significance.
It must be among the best examples
of a particular style of architec-
ture.

GOOD - The architecture is of local
significance. It should be a good
example of a style of architecture
in the study area.

FAIR - The architectural value is of
minor significance, however, it
may be worthy of mention because
it is part of a group of structures
that make an interesting setting.

POOR - The structure has no architec-
tural value or it detracts from
the surrounding values.

Alteration of Original Design

NONE/MINOR - There have been no altera-
tions or if there have been they
are so insignificant that they are
minor and of little importance.

MODERATE - The structure has been al-
tered, but the alterations only
diminish the value of the original
structure by a small amount.

EXTENSIVE - The structure has been al-
tered so significantly that the
entire original character of the
building is defaced.
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Environment

The structures are only part of what
make up a neighborhood. The area sur-
rounding each structure, the so-called
environment, is important because of
the effect it has upon the buildings.
Furthermore, one's perception of an
area distinguishes one neighborhood
from another, a unique neighborhood
from an undistinguished one. For this
reason it is important to preserve not
just the beautiful old homes, but the
total environment of the neighborhood.
Too often in the preservation of an
area this environmental quality is
lost. When this occurs the neighbor-
hood will lose its unique identity.

An environmental evaluation should be
based on the observer's impression of
the total neighborhood and not on each
individual structure. A neighborhood
is defined not by streets but by
boundaries within a city block, that
is, the structures facing each other
across a street often form a neighbor-
hood group. A group of structures are
looked at opposed to just one. The
impact of the surrounding environment
is evaluated for each building. This
evaluation is qualitative and only a
skilled observer can make such an
appraisal.

The West Side Historic Area has many
distinguished characteristics, such

as the tree lined streets and the
neatly maintained homes. An environ-
mental evaluation is based on this

and a number of other criteria. The
most obvious and important are listed
below: (1) general maintenance and
appearance; ?2) building mass and set-
backs that are consistent throughout
the neighborhood, and; (3) landscaping
with shrubs and trees consistent with
those used of the late 1800's. These
elements are only a few that are taken
into consideration. They may seem
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insignificant by themselves, but when
looked at as a group are important to
the overall character of a neighborhood.

The Environmental Significance is rated
by:

GREAT - The surrounding environment is
of great value to the individual
buildings.

MODERATE - The surrounding environment
is of moderate value to the individual
buildings.

NONE - The surrounding environment is of
little or even detracts from the
value of the building.




In a historic preservation study, the
physical condition of the structures
being evaluated is important. A
building that is structurally unsound

is a poor candidate for restoration

as the costs to bring it back to use-
ful operation would exceed the bene-
fits. When a structure, however, has
great architectural and/or historic
significance the importance of physi-
cal condition diminishes. If the struc-
ture is unsound it is urgent that all possi-
ble means available should be undertaken
to preserve it. If, on the other hand,
the building is structurally sound it
should continue to be used in a pro-
ductive manner.

Physical condition, in this study, is
judged for each individual structure.
the judgment was unaffected by its
neighbor or neighborhood. The criteria
on which the physical condition was
judged is taken from Chapin's Urban
Land Use Planning.* His criteria and

methodology are widely accepted and
are suitable for use in this study.

As the evaluation was done quickly

and just on exterior features for each
structure, there is possibly room for
error. This margin for error has been
minimized by using an evaluation team
for each structure.

¥ F, Stuart Chapin, Jr., Urban Land Use
Planning (Urbana, Illinois: University
of Illinois Press, 1965).
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The physical condition criteria are
as follous:

STANDARD - The structure has no defects
or only slight defects that can be
corrected through the course of
normal maintenance.

DETERIORATING - The structure shous
signs of neglect and needs more
repairs than would be corrected
through normal maintenance. The
structure still has potential for
preservation.

DILAPIDATED = The structure is unsafe or
inadequate as structural defects are
of a major consequence and warrant
extensive repairs.




The preservation value of each structure
is made up of its historical significance,
architectural significance, environmental
and physical condition. The analysis

must be based on all of these and not

just one as any one of these alone would
be insufficient for preservation guidance.
Therefore, the analysis must be a com-
posite value of all of these criteria.
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